APPROVED MINUTES
PLANNING COMMISSION
CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA
MARCH 26, 2019

7:00PM
CALL TO ORDER:
Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning
Commission for March 26, 2019 to order at 7:00 PM

CALL OF ROLL:
On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:
Mark Lobermeier, Joel Ericson, Bryan Murdock, Katie West, and Judy Coughlin

ABSENT: None

Also Present: Fred Weck Zoning Administrator, EDA Members, Steve Sicheneder and Andrew
Buccanero, and Council Liaison Lisa Iverson

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM:
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

OPEN FORUM: NONE
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consider approving the minutes of the “Regular Meeting” of the Wyoming, Minnesota
Planning Commission for March 12, 2019

Commissioner Coughlin stated that on page 3, half way down the page, the statement about
rezoning by Zoning Administrator Weck is unclear. The Commission suggested that the term
“they” be changed to “property owner”, so the full sentence states, “He stated that the City wanted
to avoid non-conforming uses to attempt to only rezone areas when the property owners are ready
to be rezoned.”

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ERICSON, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE “REGULAR
MEETING” OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR MARCH 12,
2019 AS AMENDED.

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE
NEW BUSINESS

2. Joint Meeting with the City of Wyoming Economic Development Authority — Integrating the
EDA Strategic Plan and the PC Comprehensive Plan Update.

Chair Lobermeier explained that as the Planning Commission started looking into the
Comprehensive Plan, they found the EDA Strategic Plan could potentially mesh with the land use

1



and zoning pieces that are in the Comprehensive Plan. He asked if the EDA had taken a look
and made any kind of implementation plan after they finished the strategic plan document.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that he and Mr. Buccanero are the least senior members of the
EDA, so they may not have all the history. He stated that the EDA did decide that it was not up
to them to implement the strategic plan, but would fall to the Planning Commission. He stated
that one of the things he would like to discuss tonight is the property owned by the EDA, the
Bingham property, because that piece will need to be rezoned. He stated that some of the EDA
members are strong proponents of a downtown area. He stated that the zoning west of County
Road 30 and North of Viking Boulevard being industrial and allowing outdoor storage is not
conducive with what they feel a downtown area should be.

Chair Lobermeier asked for clarification of where the Bingham property was located.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that it is the 14-acre parcel of land just north of the water tower
near Split Rocks.

Commissioner Murdock asked what kinds of projects were being bounced around for this parcel.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that there is currently a proposal to put affordable housing in this
location.

Mayor Iverson stated that the proposal is for 70 apartments with the possibility for a second
building in the future. She stated that it would be affordable or work force type housing.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that the County is a strong supporter of getting affordable
housing in the area because there are a number of businesses in the area that need more
employees. He stated that he thinks this type of development meshes better with the idea of
having a central business district with the library and the post office in near proximity.

Commissioner Murdock stated that one of the stated goals in their strategic plan is the
development of a centralized business district. He stated that he has heard various things about
having a “city center” and wondered if that was still a focus.

Mayor lverson noted that they have gone back and forth about what actually constitutes “central
Wyoming” and have questioned whether the City will ever be anything like a Lindstrom or a
Chisago City. She stated that about 30% of the manufacturing in the County is located within the
City. She stated that she believes that if the City can get some housing in place, then restaurants
will come and once the restaurants come, there may be some other shops that come along too.
She stated that the EDA are the marketers for the City but the Planning Commission needs to tell
them where things should go and noted how important it is for the two to work together.

Chair Lobermeier agrees that it should be a collaborative process between the Planning
Commission and the EDA.

Mayor lverson stated that the question becomes what does the City look like in 30 years and
asked if it was a City that had 25,000 people or just 15,000 and what needs to be done in order
to get where the collective vision is for the future. She stated that manufacturing businesses are
definitely the biggest employers in the City and asked what the City wants to attract in the future.

EDA member Sicheneder stated that the EDA is not in a position to start acquiring properties in
order to create the downtown area. He stated that they do have a list of available properties and
an analysis of sewer and water capacity. He noted that the land use and housing is estimating
25 building permits per year.



Chair Lobermeier stated that the growth rate was driven by the understood capacity of the sewer
and water and without a large investment in infrastructure.

EDA member Sicheneder reiterated that the EDA is not looking to buy property, but if the Bingham
property was sold that would give them some resources in order to take a look around and see
what is out there.

Commissioner Murdock stated that both the EDA Strategic Plan and the Comprehensive Plan
had talked about a downtown city center area and he wondered if was based in reality and should
stay in the documents or be revised to something that more accurately reflects what may happen
in the City.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that he has lived in the City since 1979 and thinks discussion of
encouraging a downtown area began in 1982. He stated that doing something different with the
property at Lakes Gas would be a start but is entirely up to the owner.

Mayor Iverson stated that she serves on the Highway 8 Task Force and they are looking at
widening it and she believes that is the next big place for growth, however, it may be difficult to
get sewer all the way out there. She stated that she thinks this will happen within the next 10
years so the City should be looking at zoning in that area in order to plan ahead for possible retail
and housing growth out there. She stated that if there is more growth, there may also be a need
for another police station or additional fire department facilities. She stated that this all needs to
be part of the strategic plan and looking ahead to figure out where things should go.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that they have been trying to look at where there is current
capacity for the sewer and water that has vacant land for housing and businesses.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that Highway 8 does not have sewer and water out there and the
estimate to run it out there was $15,000,000 so she believes it will be developer driven in order
to pay for the infrastructure. She stated that there may be an option for a community septic
system but that would only work with a business that has less water usage. She stated that the
25 building permits a year was a conservative estimate and could definitely be more than that.

Mayor Iverson agrees that was a conservative estimate because and noted that Paxmar may
come through with about 350 houses in the next 5 years or so as well as other possible projects
in the City.

Commissioner Murdock asked if there was anything included in the EDA strategic plan under
goals that the Planning Commission should be looking at.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that the EDA has no authority so, for example, their goal of
“develop and implement zoning districts to foster a centralized business district” is not something
that they can do except to work within the bounds of the zoning and Comprehensive Plan.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he would like to know who “owns” each bullet point because
that is the only way anything will get done.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that the EDA’s mission statement revolves around retention and
growth and noted that they had just added a new portion to promote housing and amenities.

Mayor Iverson stated that the City tries hard to keep in contact with the businesses and tries to
find out what they need to help them succeed and grow.



Chair Lobermeier asked what other properties the EDA owned and asked if they were looking at
obtaining more.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that in addition to the Bingham property there are a few tax
forfeiture properties that the City owns. He reviewed the locations of those properties.

Commissioner Coughlin asked if the City was actively doing any work to find someone to develop
the properties listed by Zoning Administrator Weck.

Mayor Iverson stated that in the last few years with City Administrator Linwood in charge, she
feels the City has done a good job of marketing itself. She stated that the City has two videos
available that they send out on a flash drive to anyone who expresses interest.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that they had someone come in with a drone and film footage
as part of an effort to develop a marketing plan to work in conjunction with the strategic plan. He
stated that the bottom line is whether the City is in a position to offer businesses anything and if
this a location that they want to be.

Commissioner Ericson asked what things the EDA considers as detriments to marketing the City.
Mayor Iverson stated that she thinks one thing may be zoning.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that he thinks another thing may be taxes and the workforce.
He stated that only about 10% of the workforce lives within the City because of the lack of
affordable housing. He gave examples of the housing that is going into the City that is not
affordable.

Mayor lverson stated that the Chisago County mayors are working on making the tax issue a non-
issue.

Chair Lobermeier stated that when she answered the question posed by Commissioner Ericson,
she answered zoning. He asked her to expand on that and explain why that was her answer.

Mayor Iverson stated that if she looks at the map that is filled with all the different colors, it is a lot
to separate out and see where businesses may be able to locate. She stated that it is complicated
because it is hard to know where a company that may want to come into the City fits into the big
picture in conjunction with the zoning map.

Chair Lobermeier stated that another level to the confusion is the Comprehensive Plan because
they do not match and even have different descriptions.

Commissioner West stated that it sounds like both the Planning Commission and the EDA think
the affordable housing on the Bingham property is a good idea and asked what is holding the City
back from making the property more appealing to a developer.

Mayor lIverson explained that developers want some sort of incentive and the Council is
responsible for spending tax dollars to bring in businesses but be responsible to the residents.
She gave the example of Polaris and the idea of people saying that the City gave everything away
to them however, they are the biggest tax base in the City. She stated that the Council needs to
be able to have communication with the community about what they will get in return in order to
give the developers incentive to come to the City. She stated that this was why she had brought
up the importance of community engagement in the past to find out what residents see for the
future of the City.



Commissioner West asked how the public has a chance to engage in this kind of community
engagement. She stated that she has lived in the City for 2 years and definitely has a view of
what she would like the City to be like, but has never heard about a way to be involved and
communicate that vision with the City.

Mayor Iverson noted that it is something that has been discussed by the Council and was recently
included in their goals. She stated that there was an attempt at community engagement with
relation to the utility rates, but nobody showed up. She noted that the City actually videotaped
that presentation which is available for people to watch. She stated that they are also planning
to do pop-ups, for example, at IGA or a park to engage with people.

Commissioner West asked how the City was reaching out to people to get the word out that this
is happening.

Mayor lverson stated that they have different approaches that are used in an effort to reach the
different age groups represented in the City. She stated that they use e-mail, Facebook, Twitter,
and the newsletter. She stated that they are working on being able to stream meetings.

EDA Member Sicheneder agrees that it is hard to get people involved because people are
generally happy that there is a good police department and a good fire department. He stated
that when things are going smoothly it is harder to get people to be engaged and involved.

Commissioner West asked how the boat can be rocked enough to get people excited and
engaged about that property and the idea of generating business for the City.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that the affordable housing project is in the very early stages
and there will be a number of public hearings that will take place as part of that process.

Mayor Iverson noted that there is a work shop scheduled for April 3, 2019 to hear more about the
project and what it may look like.

Chair Lobermeier asked about the medical piece and using zoning as a springboard for medical
development in the City.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he attended a real estate conference that dealt with
marketing to medical entities and stated that a big part of it is “rooftops” and having enough people
where it makes sense for them to locate here. He stated that they also take into consider its
proximity to other medical facilities. He stated that until there are more rooftops here, the City is
a bit in limbo before medical entities would be interested in locating here.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he was thinking more along the lines of ancillary development that
adds services to the hospital.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that when the hospital went in there was the expectation that
there would be more ancillary development but that has not materialized. He stated that what
has happened is the hospital is building on to their building and handling things in house or renting
space to outside specialties.

Mayor lverson stated that she actually talked to a funeral home that is not located in this area and
talked to them about Heims Lake because of the view. She stated that they are actively seeking
things like a QuikTrip and Dunkin’ Donuts.

Zoning Administrator Weck noted that they had spoken with an assisted living facility for out at
Heims Lake also.



Chair Lobermeier stated that is why it is important that the Planning Commission understands the
EDA goals so there is both a Comprehensive Plan and a zoning ordinance that allows the City to
leverage the interest in people coming to the City. He noted that the Greenwood development
has come in with different densities than the City is used to seeing.

Commissioner Coughlin asked if the City needs to have more mixed-use areas and whether that
would make it easier to fit things into their plans.

Mayor lverson stated that is something that the Planning Commission will need to decide.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that the City doesn’t have much property that it controls. He
noted that City Administrator Linwood has done a great job at listing properties and having the
business directory available on the website so people know what is here.

Mayor lverson asked the Planning Commission what they would like to see in the City.

EDA Member Sicheneder asked how the Planning Commission envisions the EDA working
alongside them.

Chair Lobermeier stated that there doesn’t seem to be a shared vision that everyone has. He
stated that he feels that it is necessary to know what the City wants to be before anything can get
done. He stated that there also needs to be a strategy about how to get people to come out and
tell the City what they want to see in the City. He stated that there needs to be a way to get
everyone on the same page so everyone is aiming at the same target.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he thinks it needs something unique because when you say
Wyoming, people do not think of the City, just the State of Wyoming. He stated that there could
be something unique and visible because the City is located right on the freeway.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that Lindstrom and Chisago both have their visible landmarks and
they are also very active in promoting themselves. She stated that it seems like Matt Silver with
the paper is constantly promoting something in those cities. She stated that she didn’t think the
City had anyone promoting us.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that he thinks the biggest event where there could be outreach
is National Night Out.

Mayor Iverson stated that there are also Stage Coach Days and the Touch A Truck events.

Commissioner Coughlin suggested that the City may need to have more promotion type events
similar to Lindstrom. She stated that she feels there needs to be events that draw people from
outside of the community because the people inside the community cannot fully support the
businesses.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that he thinks there needs to be some promotion on the trails.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he thinks the City would be a good location for an anti-
commuting remote office center.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that when the Swedish Immigrant Trail is completed, he thinks
that will give the City something to promote a bit more. He gave examples of other areas
throughout the State that have trails, shops and businesses as well as bed and breakfasts that



have gone up in the area because of the draw of the trails. He stated that is why he also feels
there needs to be a city center that is visible to people when they get off the freeway.

Mayor Iverson stated that one of the new Park Advisory Commission members had suggested
having signage with QR codes that have a history of the City and businesses. She stated that
they are working on a Veteran’s Memorial Park and will have a community engagement event on
April 13, 2019 regarding the park.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that there is a walking tour of the City with maps that are
available from the library, but he isn’t sure that many people know about it.

Commissioner West stated that she agrees that more events are a good idea and a great way to
reach out to the community. She asked if there were any properties throughout the City that the
EDA would like to develop but may not have the correct zoning and would like the Planning
Commission to take a closer look at zoning.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that currently the industrial zoning allows for outdoor storage,
but north of Viking Boulevard it would be nice if it wouldn’t allow outdoor storage.

Mayor Iverson stated that she does not think that is something that the City can do.

EDA Member Sicheneder stated that he was just meaning that the last thing the City should want
is that sort of outdoor storage being the first thing people see when they come into the City.

Commissioner Ericson stated that he thinks the City needs people. He gave the example of how,
over time, Maple Grove has developed a beautiful downtown with lots of businesses including
housing for people to live there.

Mayor lverson stated that she thinks it is a good idea for all of the committee members to talk to
their neighbors and explain the vision and why it may be good to have more housing.

Commissioner Murdock asked if there was any place in town that people can rent for weddings
or special events. He stated that he doesn’t think it needs to be big, but feels that would be a
reasonable start to build on getting people.

Mayor Iverson stated that the City Hall or Split Rocks were the only things available for that type
of use.

EDA member Sicheneder stated that there are pavilions at the parks that are available for rent.
He stated that having a plowed trail system and off-road trails would also be a real draw to people.

Chair Lobermeier thanked the EDA members for coming and noted that he thinks that is was a
very helpful conversation for everyone.

Commissioner Coughlin asked EDA Member Buccanero for his input as a relatively new member
of the EDA.

EDA Member Buccanero stated that he grew up in Virginia, MN and he sees a lot of potential in
the City because of the outdoor resources, especially with the trail system.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that through the community engagement process, she would like
to find out why people moved here and what can be done to keep them here.



A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER WEST, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
COUGHLIN, TO ADJOURN THE MARCH 26, 2019 “REGULAR MEETING” OF THE
WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION AT 8:32 PM.

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, Coughlin, West, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None



	CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA

